




 

Bastrop Zoning Board of Adjustment  December 6, 2017 Page 1 of 2  

Zoning Board of Adjustment Agenda 

Bastrop City Hall City Council Chambers 

1311 Chestnut Street 

Bastrop, TX 78602 

(512) 332-8840 

 

Meeting Minutes for the Zoning Board of Adjustment  

December 6, 2017 at 6:00 P.M. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Dan Hays-Clark called to order at 6:05 p.m. 
 
Dan Hays-Clark    PRESENT  
Blas Coy       PRESENT 
Bob Rogers         PRESENT 
Scott Bryant     ABSENT 
Jimmy Crouch     ABSENT 
 
2. CITIZEN COMMENTS  
 
No citizen comments. 
 
 
3. ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 

 
A. Consider action to approve the minutes from the November 1, 2017 meeting. 
 

Motion to approve minutes by Bob Rogers, seconded by Blas Coy. Motion approved 3-0. 
 

B. Election of officers for the Zoning Board of Adjustment. 
 

Motion made by Bob Rogers to table election until all Board members are present, seconded by 
Blas Coy. Motion approved 3-0. 
 
4. WORKSHOP SESSION 

 
A. Roles and responsibilities of the Zoning Board of Adjustment. 

 
David Gattis, Interim Planning Director presented a PowerPoint presentation for ZBA training.  

 
5. DIRECTOR OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT UDPATES 



 

Bastrop Zoning Board of Adjustment  December 6, 2017 Page 2 of 2  

 
A. Direction from the Zoning Board of Adjustment on any items to be included on future 

agendas. 
 

No direction was given. 
 

6. ADJOURNMENT 
 
At 7:33 p.m. the agenda items came to an end and Dan Hays-Clark adjourned the meeting. 

 

____________________________ 

Dan Hays-Clark, Chair 



Page 1 of 1 
 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:  February 7, 2018      ITEM:  3C 
 
TITLE:  
Consider action to set the meeting schedule for the 2018 calendar year. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Jennifer C. Bills, AICP, LEED AP, Assistant Planning Director 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The Zoning Board of Adjustment regularly meets on the first Wednesday of the month.  Below are 
the regular dates for 2018. 
 
 

ZBA Meeting Date 

January 3, 2018 

February 7, 2018 

March 7, 2018 

April 4, 2018 

May 2, 2018 

June 6, 2018 

July 4, 2018 

August 1, 2018 

September 5, 2018 

October 3, 2018 

November 7, 2018 

December 5, 2018 

 
 
July 4, 2018 is Independence Day and a city holiday, so July 11, 2018 could be an alternative 
date for that meeting.  Please review and bring any other conflicts to the board meeting schedule 
for discussion. 



Page 1 of 3 
 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:  February 7, 2018      ITEM: 3D  
   
TITLE:  
Public hearing and consider action on variances to Chapter 14, Zoning Ordinance, Exhibit B – 
Downtown Bastrop Form-Based Code, Section 7.3 Façade Composition, Section 7.6 Exterior 
Building Materials, Section 8.0 Streetscape and Landscape Standards to allow the continued use 
of a temporary modular building for 0.194 acres of Building Block 8 West of Water Street, located 
at 1006 Alley A, in the city limits of Bastrop, Texas. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Jennifer C. Bills, AICP, LEED AP, Assistant Planning Director 
 
ITEM DETAILS: 
Site Address:  1006 Alley A (Attachment 1) 
Total Acreage:  0.194 acres 
Legal Description: Building Block 8, west of Water Street, 0.194 acres 
 
Property Owner: Calvary Episcopal Church 
Applicant Contact: Shelby Hopkins 
 
Existing Use:  Private school 
Existing Zoning: Form-Based Code – Downtown Mixed Use (DMU) Character Zone 
Future Land Use: Downtown Bastrop 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY:  
Calvary Episcopal Church has private school located at 603 Spring Street and other properties 
along Alley A.  The private school was created in 2008 and started as a Pre-Kindergarten through 
sixth grade.  The school has recently expanded to offer seventh and eighth grade classes as well 
continued to expand enrollment. 
 
Temporary buildings are not allowed to be used on a permanent basis.  A modular building may 
be considered if it can meet all of the Site Development Plan requirements.  On April 3, 2013, a 
variance was granted to allow a temporary building that did not meet the Site Development Plan 
requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Attachment 3).  A Site Development Plan was approved 
on July 17, 2013 that shows the location of the building but does not address all of the required 
site plan elements. 
 
The building is to be removed 60 days after the end of the school year in 2018, which ends in 
May, and future development is to come into compliance with site requirements.  Currently, the 
building is used for private school classrooms during the week and for Sunday school classes on 
the weekends. 
 
The applicant is requesting a variance to extend the temporary building usage until the end of the 
2023-2024 school year while they explore options for a new campus site.  The applicant states 
that they do not intend to use this site as the permanent school location.  The justification for the 
need for a temporary building is that they need time for a capital campaign to raise funds for the 
new campus.  The applicant requests variances to the site development requirements are needed 
because installation of a permanent foundation, required building façade, exterior materials, and 
landscaping is not effective or practical (Attachment 2).  



Page 2 of 3 
 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  

Notifications were sent to 15 adjacent property owners.  At the time of this report, no responses 

were received. 

 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
The Zoning Board of Adjustment may authorize a variance from these regulations when, in its 
opinion, undue hardship will result from requiring strict compliance. In granting a variance, the 
Board shall prescribe only those conditions that it deems necessary to or desirable in the public 
interest.  
 
In making the findings hereinafter required, the Board shall take into account the nature of the 
proposed use of the land involved, existing uses of land in the vicinity, the number of persons 
who will reside or work in the proposed use, and the probable effect of such variance upon 
traffic conditions and upon the public health, safety, convenience and welfare in the vicinity. 

A. In order to grant a variance from these zoning regulations, the Zoning Board of 
Adjustments must make written findings that undue hardship exists, using the 
following criteria: 
 

a. Special circumstances or conditions exist which affect the land involved such 
that the strict application of the provisions of this ordinance would deprive the 
applicant of the reasonable use of the land. 
 
• The special circumstance that the applicant has listed is that the 

building will be temporary; however, the building has already been in 
place for five years and are requesting a six-year extension.  They have 
also listed that the rules of the Episcopal Diocese of Texas prohibits 
private schools from borrowing money to finance a permanent 
building, which is a condition of the occupant, not of the use of the 
site. 
 

b. The variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial 
property right of the applicant. 

 
• A variance is not necessary for use of this property.  A permanent 

structure that meets all of the site plan requirements can be 
constructed in this location. 

 

c. Granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or 
welfare or injurious to other property in the area, and the spirit of the ordinance 
will be observed. Variance may be granted only when in harmony with the 
general purpose and intent of this ordinance. 
 
• The Downtown Mixed Use Character Zone is intended to encourage 

compatible mixed-use redevelopment in the historic downtown of 
Bastrop.  Temporary buildings are not in the spirit of this ordinance. 

 

d. Granting of a variance will not have the effect of preventing the orderly use of 
other land in the area in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance. 
 

• The variance would not affect the orderly use of surrounding 
properties. 

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

e. Granting of a variance must be predicated on a finding that the applicant's 
practical difficulties or unnecessary hardship arise from unusual conditions or 
circumstances, such as exceptional irregularity of the land involved, which are 
not shared generally by other parcels in the neighborhood or district. 
 
• The hardship cited by the applicant is the lack of funding to build a 

permanent building.  There are no unusual conditions or 
circumstance that are unique to this property. 

 

B. A variance is to be denied if conditions or circumstances relied on for a variance were 
created by a person having an interest in the property. 
 
• This situation has been created by the applicant as raising the capital for 

expanded facilities was not completed in the time frame allowed by the 
previous variance nor in concurrence with the need for expanded facilities. 

 
C. Financial hardship to the applicant, standing alone, shall not be deemed to constitute 

a hardship. 
 

• The primary argument for needing temporary building is financial, as the 
applicant will move the site when funds are raised for a new location and 
building. 

 

D. The applicant bears the burden of proof in establishing the facts justifying a variance. 
 
• The Applicant has provided a letter (Attachment 2).   

 
 
The recommended findings for denial are attached in the proposed Record of Action 
(Attachment 4).  If the board feels that other findings are necessary for approval or denial, 
a blank Record of Action form (Attachment 5) is attached to record the findings. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Public hearing and consider action on variances to Chapter 14, Zoning Ordinance, Exhibit B – 
Downtown Bastrop Form-Based Code, Section 7.3 Façade Composition, Section 7.6 Exterior 
Building Materials, Section 8.0 Streetscape and Landscape Standards to allow the continued use 
of a temporary modular building for 0.194 acres of Building Block 8 West of Water Street, located 
at 1006 Alley A, in the city limits of Bastrop. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment 1:  Location Map 
Attachment 2:  Letter from Applicant 
Attachment 3:  April 3, 2013 Variance 
Attachment 4:  Recommended Record of Action 
Attachment 5:  Blank Record of Action for alternative action 
 



ALLEY A

SPRING

CH
UR

CH

LOOP 150 WEST CHESTNUT

1012 ALLEY A

1011 ALLEY A
1011 ALLEY A1011 ALLEY A

1011 ALLEY A1010 ALLEY A

1006 ALLEY A

600 SPRING ST

603 SPRING ST

R33785

R34033

R33792

R47723

R47581

R33757

R33743

R33652

R119880

R33715

R33722R33729

R33673

R33764

R33778

R33750

R33827

R47727

Location Map
Zoning Variance

Calvary Episcopal School
Building Block 8 West of Water St, 0.194 acres ³Date: 1/31/2018

The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.     1 inch = 50 feet

FARM

MAIN

PECAN

WATER

SPRING

PINE

CHURCH

ALLEY A
ALLEY B

WILSON

¬«150



jbills
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2















BLANK--0.194 acres of Building Block 8 Record of Action Page 1 of 4  

RECORD OF ACTION 
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 
 
WHEREAS, Calvary Episcopal Church, (“Applicant”) submitted a request for a Zoning Variance 
the Form-based Code Section 7.3 Façade Composition, Section 7.6 Exterior Building Materials, 
Section 8.0 Streetscape and Landscape Standards to allow the continued use of a temporary 
modular building for 0.194 acres of Building Block 8 West of Water Street, located at 1006 Alley 
A, in the city limits of Bastrop, Texas (“Property”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Property is located in an area zoned under the Bastrop Zoning Ordinance as 
Form-based Code Downtown Mixed Use (DMU) Character Zone; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Applicant has requested a variance in accordance with Section 9.8 of the Bastrop 
Zoning Ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Applicant is requesting variances to the Site Development Plan requirements to 
extend the use of a temporary building approved April 3, 2013 until the end of the 2023-2024 
school year; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Section 42 of the Bastrop Zoning Ordinance requires a Site Development Plan 
that complies with all site plan regulations; and 
 
WHEREAS, a temporary building does not meet Form-based Code Section 7.3 Façade 
Composition, Section 7.6 Exterior Building Materials, Section 8.0 Streetscape and Landscape 
Standards; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Applicant alleges that strict compliance with the Bastrop Zoning Ordinance would 
result in undue hardship, pursuant to Section 9.6 of the Bastrop Zoning Ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, public notice has been given and public hearing was held on February 7, 2018 before 
the Bastrop Zoning Board of Adjustment, with at least the statutory required 75% of members 
being present, and  
 
WHEREAS, in order to grant a variance from these zoning regulations, the Zoning Board of 
Adjustments must make written findings. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, THE BASTROP ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MAKES THE 
FOLLOWING FINDINGS: 
 

1. In order to grant a variance from these zoning regulations, the Board of 
Adjustments must make written findings that undue hardship exists, using 
the following criteria: 
 



BLANK--0.194 acres of Building Block 8 Record of Action Page 2 of 4  

a. Special circumstances or conditions exist which affect the land involved 
such that the strict application of the provisions of this ordinance would 
deprive the applicant of the reasonable use of the land. 
 
• The special circumstance that the applicant has listed is that 

the building will be temporary; however, the building has 
already been in place for five years and are requesting a six-
year extension.  They have also listed that the rules of the 
Episcopal Diocese of Texas prohibits private schools from 
borrowing money to finance a permanent building, which is a 
condition of the occupant, not of the use of the site. 
 

b. The variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a 
substantial property right of the applicant. 
 
• A variance is not necessary for use of this property.  A 

permanent structure that meets all of the site plan 
requirements can be constructed in this location. 
 

c. Granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public health, 
safety or welfare or injurious to other property in the area, and the spirit 
of the ordinance will be observed. Variance may be granted only when 
in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this ordinance. 
 
• The Downtown Mixed Use Character Zone is intended to 

encourage compatible mixed-use redevelopment in the 
historic downtown of Bastrop.  Temporary buildings are not 
in the spirit of this ordinance. 
 

d. Granting of a variance will not have the effect of preventing the orderly 
use of other land in the area in accordance with the provisions of this 
ordinance. 
 

• The variance would not affect the orderly use of surrounding 
properties. 
 

e. Granting of a variance must be predicated on a finding that the 
applicant's practical difficulties or unnecessary hardship arise from 
unusual conditions or circumstances, such as exceptional irregularity 
of the land involved, which are not shared generally by other parcels in 
the neighborhood or district. 
 
• The hardship cited by the applicant is the lack of funding to 

build a permanent building.  There are no unusual conditions 
or circumstance that are unique to this property. 
 



BLANK--0.194 acres of Building Block 8 Record of Action Page 3 of 4  

2. A variance is to be denied if conditions or circumstances relied on for 
a variance were created by a person having an interest in the property. 
 
• This situation has been created by the applicant as raising the 

capital for expanded facilities was not completed in the time frame 
allowed by the previous variance nor in concurrence with the need 
for expanded facilities. 

3. Financial hardship to the applicant, standing alone, shall not be deemed to 
constitute a hardship. 
 
• The primary argument for needing temporary building is financial, 

as the applicant will move the site when funds are raised for a new 
location and building. 
 

4. The applicant bears the burden of proof in establishing the facts justifying 
a variance. 
 
• The Applicant has provided a letter.   

 
 
 
Therefore, the request to grant the variances to Zoning Variance the Form-based Code Section 
7.3 Façade Composition, Section 7.6 Exterior Building Materials, Section 8.0 Streetscape and 
Landscape Standards to allow the continued use of a temporary modular building, as noted 
herein, IS HEREBY DENIED with the following conditions, if any: and 
 

1. ________________________________________________________________ 

2. ________________________________________________________________ 

3. ________________________________________________________________ 

4. ________________________________________________________________ 

5. _______________________________________________________________  

 
This matter was heard by at least 75% of the members of the Board who voted as follows: 
 
    
 
 
And; The action of the Bastrop Zoning Board of Adjustment, concerning this request for 
a variance to the City’s Zoning Ordinance, was approved by a minimum of at least four 
(4) members of the Board, in full compliance with the Local Government Code, Section 
211.009(c)(3); and 
 
As required by the Local Government Code, Section 211.008(f), minutes of this 
proceeding shall be kept on file in the Board’s office, and are public records. 



BLANK--0.194 acres of Building Block 8 Record of Action Page 4 of 4  

 
NOW THEREFORE, the above request for a variance was heard and _______ on 
February 7, 2018 by the Bastrop Zoning Board of Adjustment. 
 
 
________________________________ 
By:  Presiding Officer 



BLANK--0.194 acres of Building Block 8 Record of Action Page 1 of 4  

RECORD OF ACTION 
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 
 
WHEREAS, Calvary Episcopal Church, (“Applicant”) submitted a request for a Zoning Variance 
the Form-based Code Section 7.3 Façade Composition, Section 7.6 Exterior Building Materials, 
Section 8.0 Streetscape and Landscape Standards to allow the continued use of a temporary 
modular building for 0.194 acres of Building Block 8 West of Water Street, located at 1006 Alley 
A, in the city limits of Bastrop, Texas (“Property”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Property is located in an area zoned under the Bastrop Zoning Ordinance as 
Form-based Code Downtown Mixed Use (DMU) Character Zone; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Applicant has requested a variance in accordance with Section 9.8 of the Bastrop 
Zoning Ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Applicant is requesting variances to the Site Development Plan requirements to 
extend the use of a temporary building approved April 3, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Section 42 of the Bastrop Zoning Ordinance requires a Site Development Plan 
that complies with all site plan regulations; and 
 
WHEREAS, a temporary building does not meet Form-based Code Section 7.3 Façade 
Composition, Section 7.6 Exterior Building Materials, Section 8.0 Streetscape and Landscape 
Standards; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Applicant alleges that strict compliance with the Bastrop Zoning Ordinance would 
result in undue hardship, pursuant to Section 9.6 of the Bastrop Zoning Ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, public notice has been given and public hearing was held on February 7, 2018 before 
the Bastrop Zoning Board of Adjustment, with at least the statutory required 75% of members 
being present, and  
 
WHEREAS, in order to grant a variance from these zoning regulations, the Zoning Board of 
Adjustments must make written findings. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, THE BASTROP ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MAKES THE 
FOLLOWING FINDINGS: 
 

1. In order to grant a variance from these zoning regulations, the Board of 
Adjustments must make written findings that undue hardship exists, using 
the following criteria: 
 



BLANK--0.194 acres of Building Block 8 Record of Action Page 2 of 4  

a. Special circumstances or conditions exist which affect the land involved 
such that the strict application of the provisions of this ordinance would 
deprive the applicant of the reasonable use of the land. 
 
•  

b. The variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a 
substantial property right of the applicant. 
 
•  

c. Granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public health, 
safety or welfare or injurious to other property in the area, and the spirit 
of the ordinance will be observed. Variance may be granted only when 
in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this ordinance. 
 
•  

d. Granting of a variance will not have the effect of preventing the orderly 
use of other land in the area in accordance with the provisions of this 
ordinance. 
 
•  

e. Granting of a variance must be predicated on a finding that the 
applicant's practical difficulties or unnecessary hardship arise from 
unusual conditions or circumstances, such as exceptional irregularity 
of the land involved, which are not shared generally by other parcels in 
the neighborhood or district. 
 
•  



BLANK--0.194 acres of Building Block 8 Record of Action Page 3 of 4  

2. A variance is to be denied if conditions or circumstances relied on for 
a variance were created by a person having an interest in the property. 
 
•  

3. Financial hardship to the applicant, standing alone, shall not be deemed to 
constitute a hardship. 
 
•  

4. The applicant bears the burden of proof in establishing the facts justifying 
a variance. 
 
•  

 
 
Therefore, the request to grant the variance to Form-based Code Section 6.7 b (i) to allow a 25 
foot front setback, as noted herein, IS HEREBY _________, with the following conditions, if any: 
and 
 

1. ________________________________________________________________ 

2. ________________________________________________________________ 

3. ________________________________________________________________ 

4. ________________________________________________________________ 

5. _______________________________________________________________  

 
This matter was heard by at least 75% of the members of the Board who voted as follows: 
 
    
 
 
And; The action of the Bastrop Zoning Board of Adjustment, concerning this request for 
a variance to the City’s Zoning Ordinance, was approved by a minimum of at least four 
(4) members of the Board, in full compliance with the Local Government Code, Section 
211.009(c)(3); and 
 
As required by the Local Government Code, Section 211.008(f), minutes of this 
proceeding shall be kept on file in the Board’s office, and are public records. 
 



BLANK--0.194 acres of Building Block 8 Record of Action Page 4 of 4  

NOW THEREFORE, the above request for a variance was heard and _______ on 
November 1, 2017 by the Bastrop Zoning Board of Adjustment. 
 
 
________________________________ 
By:  Presiding Officer 


	Board of Adjustment February 2018 Agenda - Executed
	February 2018 ZBA Packet



